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NOTICE OF 11" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF
ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO ALL THE MEMBERS, DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS OF
ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED THAT THE 11™ ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 OF THE COMPANY WILL BE
HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30", 2025 AT 04:00 P.M. AT UNIT NO. 724, SEVENTH
FLOOR, EROS CORPORATE PARK, K BLOCK, SECTOR2, IMT MANESAR, GURGAON,
MANESAR, HARYANA, INDIA, 122052 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS
MATTERS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Financial Statement for the Year ended on 31*
March, 2025 along with Auditor report and Board Report thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as
an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Annual Financial Statements consisting of the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 along with the explanatory notes annexed to or forming part thereof together
with the reports of the Independent Auditor and the Board of Directors of the Company submitted to
the Members at the Meeting be and are hereby approved and adopted;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized
to issue a certified true copy of the above-mentioned resolution to anyone concerned or interested in the
matter.”

For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly Known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited”)

For Accord Transforf\er & Switchgear Limited

For Accord Transformer & Swilc!

i St

Pradeep Kumar Verma Shalini Singh
Chairman cum Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 05113022 DIN: 07036391

Date : August 18, 2025
Place : Gurgaon



NOTES:

A.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY: A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE
DEPOSITED WITH THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
TIME FIXED FOR COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™)
is annexed hereto. The additional and relevant details, pursuant to Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of issue of
Equity Shares at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM?”) are also annexed.

Corporate Members: Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are
requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing the representatives
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Queries at the AGM: Queries proposed to be raised at the Annual General Meeting may be sent
to the Company at its registered office at least seven days prior to the date of AGM to enable
the management to compile the relevant information to reply the same in the meeting,

Members are requested to notify any change in their address/ mandate/ bank details immediately
to the company at its registered office.

Inspection of Documents: Documents referred to in the Notice etc., are open for inspection at
the registered office of the Company at all working days up to the date of Annual General
Meeting.

Route Map of the Venue of the Annual General Meeting:






ATTENDANCE SLIP

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 AT 04:00 P.M.

I, , Ledger Folio No.: , holding

fully paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in the Company hereby record my presence at the Annual
General Meeting of Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited At Its Registered Office Of The
Company At Unit No. 724, Seventh Floor, Eros Corporate Park, K Block, Sector2, Imt Manesar,
Gurgaon, Manesar, Haryana, India, 122052.

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy/Representative

Notes:

1. Please fill this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the reception counter.

2. Sharcholders Are Requested To Bring Their Copies Of The AGM Notice Document With
Them.



Form No. MGT - 11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U31500HR2014PLC052544
Name of the Company : ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
Registered Office : Unit No. 724, Seventh Floor, Eros Corporate Park, K Block,

Sector2, Imt Manesar, Gurgaon, Manesar, Haryana, India, 122052.

Name of the member(s)

Registered address

E-mail ID

Folio No/Client ID

DP ID

I/We, being the member(s) of ............... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

Name

E-mail ID

Address

Signature

Or failing her/him

Name

E-mail ID

Address

Signature

Or failing her/him



Name

E-mail ID

Address

Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at Annual General Meeting
of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at the registered office of the Company at
Unit No. 724, Seventh Floor, Eros Corporate Park, K Block, Sector2, Imt Manesar, Gurgaon, Manesar,
Haryana, India, 122052 at 04.00 P.M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as
are indicated below:

Resolution No. | Resolution

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Financial Statement for the Year
ended on 31* March, 2025 along with Auditor report and Board Report thereon

Affix
Revenue
Stamp of

Re.l

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.



Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly Known as Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited)

=2
Registered Office : Unit No. 724, Seventh Floor, Eros Corporate Park, —//acccrd
/

K Block, Sector-2, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Manesar, Haryana, India, 122052 T & R
CIN Number : U31500HR2014PLC052544
Mobile : +91-8527422944 Email : info@atsgroup.in, Website : www.atsgroup.in

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD'’S REPORT)

Dear Members,
Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly Known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited”)

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 11t (Eleventh) Annual Report together
with the financial statements for the financial year ending 31t March 2025 along with the
Board’s Report including annexures thereto and Report of Auditor's thereon.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

The Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2025:
Figures in Thousands (‘000’)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 7,90,225.34 4,85,369.14
Other Income 1,693.69 361.06
Total Income 7.,91,919.02 4,85,730.21
Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, 6,99,387.56 4.57,176.62
Finance Cost and Tax

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costand | 69,017.78 15,519.17
Tax

Less: Depreciation 4,049.55 1,628.34
Less: Finance Cost 6,737.64 4,888.87
Profit Before Extraordinary & Exceptional 79,804.97 22,036.38
[tems and Tax

Less: Extraordinary & Exceptional Items - -

Profit before tax 79,804.97 22,036.38
Less: Current Tax 21,702.40 5,706.69
Less: Earlier Years Tax (82.94) -

Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) (1,251.35) 157.47
Profit after Tax : 59,436.86 16,172.22

2. STATE OF AFFAIRS / HIGHLIGHTS:

. The Company is engaged in the business of “The company is engaged in
manufacturing, assembling, importing, exporting, and trading of electrical equipment
such. as transformers, switchgear, voltage stabilizers, cables, wires, and related
components. It also undertakes electrical engineering and

Factory 1 : Plot No. H1-39 (F1 & F2), RIICO Industrial Area, Khuskhera, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan - 301707 (INDIA)
Factory 2 : Plot No. E-11 (E82), RIICO Industrial Area, Khuskhera, Bhiwadi, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan - 301707 (INDIA)




II.

II1.

IV.

contracting work, including supply, installation, and handling of appliances
and systems.”

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial
year ended March 31, 2025.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors, in their meeting held on
28th September 2024, and subsequently the members, in the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 22nd October 2024, approved the change in the
Company’s name from Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited to
Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited.

During the year under review, the income from operation of the Company for the
financial year 2024-25 stood as Rs. 79,02,25,340 against Rs. 48,53,69,140 in the
previous year. The Company earned a profit of Rs. 5,94,36,860 against a profit of
Rs. 1,61,72,220 in the previous year.

3. WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN, IF ANY:

The Company is having website i.e. https://atsgroup.in/ and annual return of
Company has been published on such website. Link of the same is given below:
Link: https:/ /atsgroup.in/annual-reports

4. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Ten (10) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 i.e.
17.06.2024, 19.07.2024, 20.07.2024, 14.08.2024, 05.09.2024, 26.09.2024, 28.09.2024,
30.10.2024, 30.12.2024 and 28.03.2025. The maximum gap between any two Board
Meetings was less than one Hundred and Twenty days. Details are given as follows:

Sr. | Date of Meeting | Total no. of Director as Attendance
No. on Date of Meeting No. Directors | % of
Attended meeting | Attendance

01 17.06.2024 2 2 100%

02 [19.07.2024 2 2 100%

03 [20.07.2024 2 2 100%

04 |14.08.2024 2 2 100%

05 ]05.09.2024 2 2 100%

06 |26.09.2024 2 2 100%

07 [28.09.2024 2 2 100%

08 [30.10.2024 3 3 100%

09 [30.12.2024 3 3 100%

10 | 28.03.2025 3 3 100%




5. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor in their report have not reported
any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees under
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read together with the relevant notes
to the accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and do not call for any
further comment. Further, The Auditors’ Reports for the financial year 2024-25 does not
contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial
position of the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to
which the financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

8. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Capital:

As on 31st March, 2025, the authorised share capital of the Company stood at
Rs.20,75,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crore Seventy Five Lakh Only) divided into 2,07,50,000
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Issued Subscribed & Paid-up Capital:

As on 31t March, 2025 the paid up share capital of the Company and paid-up share
capital of the Company stood at Rs. 29,43,390 divided into 2,94,339 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each. Further, during the year under review, the Company has made allotment on
preferential basis through private placement in their board meeting held on September
26, 2024 for 44,339 Equity Share at a price of Rs. 2,255 (Rupees Two Thousand Two
Hundred Fifty Only) including Face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) and Premium of
Rs. 2,245 (Rupees Two Thousand Two Hundred Forty Five Only).

Dematerialisation of Shares:

During the year under review, the Company has entered into tripartite agreements for
dematerialization of equity shares with the Maashitla Securities Private Limited
(hereinafter refereed as “Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)”), National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (hereinafter refereed
as “Depository”). Further, as on March 31, 2025, all the Equity Shares issued by the
Company are held in demat form except Equity shares hold by Pradeep Kumar Verma



and Shalini Singh. The Company ISIN No. is INE132201018 and M/s. KFIN Technologies
Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

Transfer of Shares:

During the year under review, the Company did not receive any request for transfer of
equity shares.

Issue of Equity Shares with differential voting rights, Sweat Equity, ESOP.

During the year under review, the company has not issued any equity shares with
differential voting rights, Sweat Equity Shares or Shares to its employees under
“Employee Stock Option Scheme”.

9. CHANGE IN DIRECTORSHIP:

During the year under review, the Company appointed Mr. Dipakkumar
Chandrakantbhai Thakkar as Non-Executive Independent Director in its extra-ordinary
general meeting held on 2274 October 2024.

Further, the Company has appointed Mr. Pradeep Kumar Verma as Managing Director
cum chairman and Ms. Shalini Singh as whole-time director, in their board meeting held
on 21st June, 2025. Thereafter, the Company has appointed, Ms. Neelam, as Non-
Executive Independent Director and Mr. Amrender Nath Shukla as Non-Executive
Director, in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on July 14, 2025.

Furthermore, the Company has appointed Ms. Tulsi Sharma as the Compliance officer
and Company Secretary of the Company in the Board Meeting held on 01t August, 2025.

10. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS:

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

11. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025, were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of
business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not
attracted.

However, there are some materially significant related party transactions during the
financial year made by the Company, thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is attached as
Annexure A.



Furthermore, the disclosure of transactions with related parties for the financial year is
given in Significant accounting policy point no. 2.3 to the Balance Sheet i.e. as per
Accounting Standard -18.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD:

The Company has Complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards (as amended from
time to time) on meetings of the Board of Directors and Meeting of Shareholders
(EGM/AGM) i.e. S5-1 and SS-2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
and approved by Central Government under section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND INVESTMENT:

The Company has not made any investments, given guarantees, or provided securities
during the financial year under review. However, the company has given loan during
the financial year. Therefore, company has complied with the provisions of Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 and details of the same has given in the notes 17 to the
Financial Statements.

14. TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors of your company has decided to transfer any amount of profit to
the Reserves for the financial year under review.

15. DIVIDEND:

During the year under review, the Company has not recommend or declared any
dividend.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

The details of Conservation of energy, Technology Absorption, and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo Information as required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014, has been
annexed as Annexure - B to this report and forms part of this report.

17. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks
followed by coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the
probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of
opportunities. The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and
Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These
procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through
means of a properly defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the



Company and its mitigation process/measures have been formulated in the areas such
as business, project execution, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.

18. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
[“POSH"]:

The Company has adopted a policy for prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace,
in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”). An Internal Complaints
Committee (“ICC”) has been duly constituted as per the provisions of the POSH Act to
redress complaints regarding sexual harassment at the workplace.

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with all the
provisions of the POSH Act and the rules framed thereunder. Further details are as
follow:

a. Number of complaints of Sexual Harassment received in the Year: NIL
b. Number of Complaints disposed -off during the year: NIL
c. Number of cases pending for more than ninety days: NIL

19. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company doesn’t have any Subsidiary & Joint Venture
and Associate Companies at the end of the year.

20. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLWITH REFERENCE TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the financial year, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

21. AUDITOR:
Statutory Auditors

During the year under review, M/s. Kumar Vijay Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants
(FRN 007814N) has resigned from the Company with effect from 07.08.2024. Therefore,
the Company has appointed M/s P.K. Lakhani & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No.: 014682N) as statutory auditor of the Company for the financial year
2023-24 and they shall hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.



Further, As per the provisions of Section 139, 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder (hereinafter referred to as “The Act”), the Company at Annual General
Meeting ("AGM”) had approved the appointment of M/s P.K. Lakhani & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No.:014682N) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for
a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the
financial year 2023-24 till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the Financial
Year 2028-2029.

Secretarial Auditors

During the year under review, the provision of Secretarial Auditor has not applicable to
the Company.

Cost Auditors

During the year under review, the provision of cost audit was not applicable to our
Company.

22. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors would like to inform the Members that the Audited Accounts for the
tfinancial year ended March 31, 2025, are in full conformity with the requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Financial Accounts are audited by the Statutory Auditors, M/s
P.K. Lakhani & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 007814N). The
Directors further confirm that: -

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the
Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern' basis.

e) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the
Company.



f)  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

23. DEPOSITS:

The company has not accepted any deposits under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the financial year under review.

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

During the year under review, the provision of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
was not applicable on the Company.

25. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, the provision of Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
was applicable to our Company and the Company has received necessary declarations
from all Independent Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

26. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

During the year under review, the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and it powers) Rules, 2014, has not
applicable to our Company.

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSON:

During the year under review, the provision of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, has not applicable to our company.

28. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company has adopted best corporate practices and is committed to conducting its
business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company’s
Corporate Governance practices are driven by effective and strong Board oversight,
timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and high level of Integrity in decision
making.

29. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD,
ITS COMMITTEES & INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors have evaluated the performance of all Directors and its
Committees. The Board deliberated on various evaluation attributes for all directors and



after due deliberations made an objective assessment and evaluated that all the directors
in the Board have adequate expertise drawn from diverse industries and business and
bring specific competencies relevant to the Company’s business and operations. The
Board found that the performance of all the Directors was quite satisfactory.

The Board also noted that the term of reference and composition of the Committees was
clearly defined. The Committee performed their duties diligently and contributed
effectively to the decisions of the Board.

The functioning of the Board and its committees were quite effective. The Board
evaluated its performance as a whole and was satisfied with its performance and
composition of Directors.

30. PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE,2016:

During the year under review, the provision of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
has not applicable to our Company.

31. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE
AT THE ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION ALONG
WITH REASON THEREOF:

The Company has not made any one-time settlement for loans taken from the Banks or
Financial Institutions, and hence the details of difference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking
loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not
applicable.

32. MATERNITY BENEFIT:

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity
Benefit Act, 1961, and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees
during the year.

33. ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

Your directors place on the record their appreciation of the Contribution made by
employees, consultants at all levels, who with their competence, diligence, solidarity, co-
operation and support have enabled the Company to achieve the desired results.

The board of Directors gratefully acknowledge the assistance and co-operation received
from the Central and State Governments Departments, Shareholders and Stakeholders.



For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly Known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited”)

For Accord Transfor\er & Switchgear Limited
For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited

Sl € 4

—— Director
Pradeep Kumar Verma Shalini Singh
Chairman cum Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 05113022 DIN: 07036391

Date : August 18, 2025
Place : Gurgaon



ANNEXURE-A
Form No. AOC-2
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’slength transactions under third proviso

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by the
Company during the year ended March 31, 2025, which were not at arm’s length

basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
The details of material contracts or arrangements at arm’s length basis for the year
ended March 31,2025 are as follows:

Amount in Rupees

Name(s) of |Nature of|Duration [Salient Date(s) of Aani‘é’ugg
the related | contracts/a | of the |terms of the|| Amount | Approval | Advanc
party and |rrangemen | contracts/ar | contracts or by the €s
nature of | ts/transacti |rangement |arrangemen Board
relationship |ons s/transactio |ts or

ns transaction

s

ABL Purchase of [ NA NA 24,2536 [17.06.2024 [NA
Electricals, a|Goods 0
sole
proprietorship
firm of
Director
Pradeep
Kumar Verma
ABL Sale  of[NA NA 40,63,00 [17.06.2024 [NA
Electricals, a|Goods 0
sole
proprietorship
firm of




Director
Pradeep
Kumar Verma

For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly Known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited”)

For Accord Transforf\er & Switchgear Limited
For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited

(‘Q\AQ/Q/LCU < vk

Ditector

Pradeep Kumar Verma Shalini Singh
Chairman cum Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 05113022 DIN: 07036391

Date : August 18, 2025
Place : Gurgaon



ANNEXURE - B

INFORMATION RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT IN TERMS OF
SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE (8)(3) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Conservation of Energy

()

The steps taken or impact on conservation of
energy

The company is taking all
possible steps to conserve the
energy to the maximum extent.

Further, the company is always
installing  such  electrical
devices which minimize the
power consumption.

(ii) | The steps taken by the company for utilising | NIL
alternate sources of energy;

(iii) | The capital investment on energy | NIL
conservation equipment

Technology Absorption

(i) | The efforts made towards technology | NIL
absorption

(ii) | The Dbenefits derived like product | NIL
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

(iii) | In case of imported technology (imported | NIL
during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year
The details of technology imported NIL
The year of import NIL
Whether the technology been fully absorbed | NIL




and

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption | NIL
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;

Development.

(iv) | the expenditure incurred on Research and | NIL

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Amount in Rupees

Particulars For the year ended March| For the year ended
31, 2025 March

31, 2024

Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL NIL
Foreign Exchange Outgo NILJ NIL

For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly Known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited”)

For Accord Transforf\er & Switchgear Limited

Pradeep Kumar Verma
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 05113022

Date : August 18, 2025
Place : Gurgaon

For Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited

Shalini Singh

Whole-time Director

DIN: 07036391



Independent Auditor’s Report

Ta :
The Members
Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited

(Formerly known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited”)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aceord Transformer & Switehgear
Limited (Formerly known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited™) which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2025 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of sipnificant accounting policies
and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting
Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended (“Accounting Standards™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We Conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.




Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information which
comprises of the Director’s Report and other related information (the “other
information”), but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
audit report.

* Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurarice conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above, when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position & financial performance of the

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards referred 1o in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provision of the Act for Safeguarding the assets of the company and for Preventing and
detecting frauds and others irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimales that are reasonable and prudent and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that are operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but (o do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise form fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economics decisions of users taken or the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and  maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal finaneial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. But not for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on operating effectiveness of company’s internal control
system.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going conecern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.




Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
uset of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in :-

(i) . planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the [inancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 10 bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

IReport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a stalement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books subject to confirmation of balances
of Share Capital, Share Application Money Pending Allotment, Long Term Borrowings
from others, Trade Payables, Expenses Payable, Non-Current Investments, Recoverable
from Directors and Other Recoverables.

¢) the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 7 of the company (Accounts) Rules,2014;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2025
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31¥March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Companies Act, 2013; and
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f)

2)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”., Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to.us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any. on long-term
contracts. Company is not entering into contract for derivative trading.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

~d. A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief.

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced  or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share  premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to.or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in  writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities idenfified in any ~ manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behall’ of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief , no funds have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entitics (“Funding Parties”™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, direcily or  indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ullimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under the sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(g) , as provided under (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

1”\11 1.'1.;"}\




¢) The Company has not paid any dividend during the year and hence, compliance with
Section 123 of the Act is not applicable

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which does not have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

i) The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

For P.K. Lakhani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
TFRN: 014682N

4

Sandeep Gulati
Partner

M.No: 509230
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18" August 2025

UDIN: 25509230BMIUKE4373
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph | of our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
section of our report of even date on the accounts of Accord Transformer & Switchgear Limited
(Formerly known as “Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited™) (the “Company™) for
the year ended March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.)

Report on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) of Accord
Transformer & Switchgear Limited (*the Company’)

i(a)(A) According to the information & explanation given to us and on the basis of our

(a)(B)

(i) (b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i1) ()

examination of the records of the Company, in respect of properly, plant & equipment
and intangible assets. The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation ol Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and FEquipment by which all property, plant
and equipment are verified every yeat. In accordance with this programme, all property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are dule execuled in favour of lessee) are held in the name of
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. For
stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained
and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records, In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures
and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more




(b)  According to the information and explanations pgiven to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks on the basis of
security of current assets.

During the year, the Company has submitted quarterly returns/statements to the banks in
respect of its current assets. On verification of such returns/statements with books of
account of the Company for the respective quarters, we observed that the quarterly
returns/stalements are not in agreement with the books of accounts in certain instances.

The details of such discrepancies are as follows:

Quarter

Amount as

lrl-cpnrtedm Amount of
the quarterly s Reason for
return/ material

- (¥ in ; 3
sta:; I::::nl. Thousand) discrepancies

Thousand)

Particulars.of | ATIOURLas per

Name of Bank Securities A B:ak: F; ;
Provided NPT R

Thousand)

Qi

HDFC BANK LTD, | Stock statement The company has
86,948.02 79.380.76 (7,567.26) missed  to book
purchase entries in
the  hooks of
accounts, This s
due to  timing
difference

01

HDFC BANK'LTD. Book debts The Company has
70,861.39 67,206.66 (3,654.73) submitted
statements  afler
inadvertently
netting-off  some
advances

Q2

HDFC BANK LTD. | Stock statement The company has
122,742.35 101,476.00 (21,26635) | missed to book
purchase entries in
the  books  of
accounts. This is
dug  to  timing
difference

Q2

HDFC BANK LTD. Boolk debts The Company has
48,934 .90 83,659.00 34,724.10 imadvertently
submitted
statements  without
entrics  of  receipl
against such
debtors

Q3

HDFC BANK LTD. Stock statement The company has
161,052.91 113,027.61 (48,02530) | missed to  book
purchase entries in
the  boaks  of
accounts. This is
due  to  timing




difference
Q3 HDFC BANK LTD. Book debts The Company has
136.530.66 87.540.26 (48.990.40) | submitted
statements  afler
inadvertently
netling-off  some
| advances |
Q4 HDFC BANK LTD, Stock staterment The cumpany has
; 180,804.53 119,794.11 (61,01042) | missed to book
purchase entries in
the  books of
accounts. This is
due 1o timing
. difference i
04 HDFC BANK LTD. Book debts The Company has
285,080.92 93252.16 (191,828.76) | submitted

stalements aller
inadvertently
netting-off  some
advances. Also, few
sales enfries were
pending to  be
passed and debtor
reconciliation  was
also pending
resulting in
understated amount
being submitted (o
the bank.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments,
provided guaraniee or security or granted any loans or advances in the pature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability parinerships or any other
paries during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(ili)(f) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments
nor has it given loans or provided guarantee or security and thercfore the relevant
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) are not
applicable to the Company. Aceordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The'Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

-—H-.
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(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the
products manufactured by it and/or services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of service tax, duty of excise, sales tax
and value added tax during the year since effective | July 2017, these statutory dues has
been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including goods and
service (ax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs or
cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of deposit of provident
fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
goods and service tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, duty of
customs or cess or other stalutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have nol been
deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of any dispute except as follows:

Mame of Statute Mature of dues Amaunt Fin. Year Forum where Remarks
dispute is p_en_:li_r]g_

1. Haryana WAT C5T Demand 223.27/-  2016-2017  Excise and Taxation CST Demand
Act 2003 Levy. Officer, Gurgram  Deposited in
{West), Haryana  E.Y. 2025-26

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful
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(c)

(d})

(e)

()

(%) (2)

(g)

(xi) (a)

(h)

M

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, on and overall basis, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for
which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not held any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025, Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025, Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable,

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of
shares during the year,

During the year, the company has issued 44339 equity shares of # 10 each at a premium
of ¥2,.245 each as private placement on 26th September 2024. The monies as raised have
been applied till March 31, 2025 as follows:

Sr. . , Allocated Amount Amount
No Objeetal thi lssas Amount Utilized till Unutilized
. March 31, till March 31
(R ey 2025 2005
(Rs. in lakhs) | (Rs. in lakhs)
{ | Fusdmgworkmg capifal 999,84 999.81 0.03
requirements of our
Company
Total 999 84 999 81 0.03

Based on examinalion of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of the andit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Audilors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a
vigil mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act.




(xii)

(xiif)

(xv)

{(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, elause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The' Company is not a listed public limited company and accordingly the requirements as
stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
In our opinion and according lo the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

{a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of ils business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period up 1o March31, 2025 for the period under audit

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, pmwsmns of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank

(b)

(e)

(d)

(xvii)

{xviii)

of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations

made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us by management of the
Company, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions,2016) does not have any CIC as detailed in note 33 to the financial
statements.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the ecurrent and in the immediately
precedmg financial year.

Therc has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable,




(xix)

(xx)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting ils liabilities existing al the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.:

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly. clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For P.K. Lakhani & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 014682N

Sandeep Gulati
Partner

k&

M.No: 509230

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 18" August 2025

UDIN: 25509230BMIUKE4373



{1 TR S L

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub- sectjon 3 of Section 143 of the Companics Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Accord Transformer &
Switchgear Limited (Formerly known as “Accord Transformer & Swilchgear Private Limited™)
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
ol adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and its joint operations companies incorporated in India
(retain as applicable) based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the

extent applicable to an audit of infernal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting

was establishe maintained and il such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgments, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or ertor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reparting.

Meaning of Internal Finanecial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future years are subject (o
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,




Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effcctively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note.

For P.K. Lakham & (,u

f Sandeep Gulati
Pariner

M.No: 509230

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18™ August 2025

UDIN: 25509230BMIUKE4373
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ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
(Formerly Known as "' Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited)
CIN: U31500HR2014PLC0O52544

Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

l ' The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention on the
acerual basis of accounting and in accordance with Accounting principles generally accepted
in India and comply with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act,2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

B. Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounted
principles (GAAP) in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liahilities
as at the date of the financial statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these eslimates. Any revision fo
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

} ' L. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
Fixed assets including intangible asscts arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
company capitalizes all costs relating to acquisition and installation of fixed assets. Cost of
spares relating to specific item of fixed assets is capitalized,

Fixed assets are depreciated using useful life method in accordance with the lives specified in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives
‘ and residual values are reviewed periodically.

- D. Investments:
| There are no long-term investments in the company. Non-Cursent investments are valued at
lower of cost or net fair value.

For Accord Transtormer & Swil
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. Revenue Recognition

As per the provisions of AS-9 ‘Revenue Recognition” Revenue is recognized to the extent that
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue from services is recognized when services are rendered to
customers,

Taxation :

Current Tax is determined on the profit for the year in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act. 1961,

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
as of the Balance Sheet date and is recognized on timing difference that originate in one period
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets, subject to

consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that they can
be realized

. Impairment of Assets:

The company determines whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying amaunt
of its assets. The recoverable amount of such assets are estimated, if any indication exists and
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount,

Provisions for Contingencies:
A provision is recognized when:

i. The company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

ii. It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which will be
required to settle the obligation; and

iii. A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

iv. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and no provision for contingencies is made
in the financial statements of current year.

. Earning Per Equity Share;

Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year,

For Accord Transformer & Swi
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ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
(Formerly Known as " Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited)
CIN:U31500HR2014PTC052544

2. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts are in thousands of India Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
2.1 Deferred Taxation

Injriew of the AS-22 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, breakup of
deferred tax assets and liabilities into major components of respective balances are given

below:

Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2025 2024

Deferred Tax Assets (a) NIL NIL
Deferred Tax Liabilities (b)
Opening Balance 1576.74/- 1,419.26/-
Difference between Depreciation as per (1251.35/-) 157.48/-
Companies Act, 2013 and Income Tax Act,
1961
Clesing Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) (a-b) | 325.39/- 1576.74/-

2.2 Earning Per Equity Share

Net Profit after tax for the year has been used as the numerator and number of shares has
been used as denominator for calculating the basic and diluted earnings per share.

Calculation of Basic EPS 31st March, 31st March,
2025 2024
Face Value Per Share Rs. 10/~ Rs.10/-
Profit after tax attributable to equity 59.436.86/- 16,172.21/-
| shareholders (i)
Number of equity shares outstanding (ii) 272,716 2.50,000
Basic Earnings Per Share [(i)/(ii)] 217.94/- 64.69/-

For Accord Transformer & Switc
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2.3 Related Party Disclosures:

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard (AS)-18 'Related Party
Disclosures’ notified by Government in the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006,
are given hereunder:

A. Key Management Personnel
. Pradeep Kumar Verma— Director
Shalini Singh — Director
Ranjan Kumar Samal - CFO (w.e f. - 21/06/2025)
Tulsi Sharma - Company Secretary (w.e.f. - 01/08/2025)

B. Relative of Individual Exercising Control Over the Company-NIL

C. Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management or their relatives:
ABL Electricals: Enterprise over which KMP has significant influence

D. Disclosure of during the year transactions with Eelated Parties:

*: Name of Related Party Transaction Type | 31st March, | 31st March,

H' 2025 2024

i Pradeep Kumar Verma Director 1.800/- 1,800/-

' Eemuneration
Acceptance of NIL 718.01/-
Unsecured Loan
Repayment of 10089.74/- 748.53/-
Unsecured Loan
Shalini Singh Director 1,800/~ 1,800/~
Remuneration
Acceptance of NIL NIL
Unsecured Loan
Repayment of 230.00/- 123.90/-
Unsecured Loan
ABL Electricals Acceptance of 11759.74 29.050.50
Unsecured Loan
Repayment of 14,647.09 2774522
, Unsecured Loan
- Purchase of Goods | 2425.36 NIL
/7N PRBale of Goods 4063.00 NIL
()

For Accord Transformer & Swite
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E. Status of outstanding halances with related parties at 31° March, 2025:-

Name of Related Party Transaction 31st March, | 31st March,
Type 2025 2024

Pradeep Kumar Verma Unsecured loan 5,892.38/- 15,982.12/-

Shalini Singh Unsecured loan 6,621.10/ 6,851.40/-

Pradeep Kumar Verma Director 181.49/- 168.95/-
Remuneration

Shalini Singh Director 3.042.53/- 3,150.27/-
Remuneration

! ABL Electricaly NIL 4.0912.10/-

2.4 Segment Reporting

The company's operating business are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of products & services, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
j products. The identified segments are Manufacturing Division & Service Activity division.

The segment result for the year ended 31st March 2025 is as follows:-

(Rs.in
Thousand)
Manufacturing Activity Service Activity Total
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 | 2023-24 | 2024-25 2023-24
Tumover 7.71,896.91 | 5,02,755.56 | 12,328.42 | 1,275.76 | 7.00,225.33 | 5,04,031.31
Other Income B880.69 73215 803.00 291.47 1693.69 1,023.63
Total Revenue 7,78,787 60 | 503487.71 | 13.131.42 | 1,567.23 | 7,91,815.02 | 5,05,054.94
Segment Result o
Profit/(Loss) 36,608.19 | 15,880.74 | 22828.57 29147 | 5043686 16,172 21
Segment Assels 59890324 | 2,66,234.56 - | 5,98,803.24 2.55.334.56'
Segment Liabilties 3,83,167.51 | 2,04 637 87 - - | 3.83,167.51 | 2,04,637.87
Depreciation 4,049.55 1,628.34 - - 4.048.55 1,628.34
Capital Expenditure— 31,254.82 | 22,927.05 = -| 3125482 | 2292705
Assets/CWIP

For Accord Transformer & Swiichgear Limited




2.5 Contingent Liabilities :

(A) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

(Amount in Thousand)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

Asgat
31 March 2024

1} CST Demand Matter, pertaining to nan-submission of 'C’
Forms before Excise and Taxation Officer, Gurgram
{West) for the F.Y.2016-17 & the total demand liability
deposited in the F.Y,2025-26 but action pending on
Officer hand. The tatal demand liability:-

223.27/-

38, 16/

__(B) Guarantees:

| Particulars

Asat
31 March 2025 (In
Thousand}

As at
31 March 2024 (In
Thousand)

Bank Guarantee extended in favour of Clients (Business
Customers) to cover the warranty period of Goods as
-specified in the Purchase Order which is in the normal
course of business activity (Margin money held in the form
of FDR for the current Year Rs.1,18,67,561/- & Previous
| Year Rs. 59.27,271/-).

20599.19/- 10,925.75/-

2.6 In respect of Investments, no provision towards diminution is considered necessary in the
books keeping in view the fact that the said Investments are of Long Term nature.

2.7 Inthe opinion of the Management, the Current Assets and Loans and Advances as shown in the
books are expected (o realize at their Book Values in the normal course of business and adequate
provision have been made in respect of all know liabilities

2.8 The Company operates in the business of manufacturing wide range of Transformers & other
electrical & power products as per the requirements of the customers having mission to produce
the best products & quality service network al every level with affordable cost.

2.9 The figires of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. The
company has compiled the above accounts based on the schedule III applicable for the
accounting period 2023-24., The disclosure requirements are made in the notes to accounts or by
way of additional statements. The other disclosures as required by the Companies Act are made
in the notes to accounts.

2.10 Key Financial Ratios for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2025 are provided in the
Annexure 1 forming part of this report.

&M%ﬂ“ﬁ
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2,11 ADDITIONAL REPORTING REQUIRED FOR OTHER REGULARITIES :

)

b.)

€.)

d.)

f)

£.)

Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company under the Prohibition
of Benami property Transaction Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and Rules made there under,

Borrowing secured against current assets
The company has no borrowings with banks and financial institution on the basis of Security of
current assets, hence no quarterly statement is required to be ficld.

Willul defaulter

The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any govermment authority.

Relationship with struck off companies

The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or
Companies Act, 19356.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The company has complicd with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction of number of layers) Rules, 2017

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact
on current or previous financial year.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The company has provided Bank Guarantee extended in favour of Clients (Business
Customers) to cover the warranty period of Goods as specified in the Purchase Order
which is in the normal course of business activity (Margin money held in the form of
FDR for the current Year Rs.1,18,68,561/- & Previous Year R5.59,27,271/-).

Particulars As at 31" March, 2025(in | As at 31" March, 2024(in
Thousand) Thowsand)

Bank Guarantec
20599.19/- 10,925.75/-

Far Accard Transformer & Switchlear Limitsd
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h.)

i)

I.)

The company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the group shall:

e  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding Party (ultimate Beneficiaries)or
e Provide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the
tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded
in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

There is no Crypto currency or virtual currency transaction made during the current or previous
year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the
books of account.

Valuation of PP&KE Intangible assets and Investment Property
The company has not Revalued its property, planl and equipment or intangible assets or both
during the current or previous year

Other Regulatory Information
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the registrar of companies
beyond the statutory period.

" For P.K. Lakhani & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN: D14682N

Sandeep Gulati

Ifur Accord Transformer B Swil
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Parter

M.No: 509230

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 18" August, 2025

UDIN: 25509230BMIUKE4373
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ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
(Formerly Known ns " Accord Transformer & Switchgeds Private Limited)
CIN: UZI500ITR20I4PLCO52544
BALANCE SHEET A5 AT 318t MARCH, 2025
(Al amounts are in thousands of India Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Partlenlars Mote Hst Mareh, 2025 315t March, 2024
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Sharcholders’ Funids
{a) Share Capital 3 2,04%.39 2,500.00
[} Reserves & Surplus 4 21246695 5858904
2,15,410.34 1, 480.04
L. Non Corrent Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 5 T932.0% 271197
(b} Deferved Tax Liability (Met) 4] 33539 1.576.74
(¢) Long Term Provisions 7 [ 2,800.51 u
' 1L,117.78 A4, 294,70
3, Current Liabilities
(1) Shotl-term bomrowings 8 1L B0, 14071 8,640,580
(b Trade Payables L
- Dhue to Micro and Stuall Enferprises B3, 727.76 257250 50
- Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 741197 5189309
(&) Oiher Current Liahilities 190 10084591 29.044.18
{dy Short Term Provisions 11 10,247 .77 5 7006 69
37237511 1.00,550.82
TOTAL 5,98.903.24 1,66,334.56
B. ASSETS
L. Non - Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant & Equipment and [ntangible Assels 12
L) Property, Plant & Equipnent 70,574 81 30.844.53
{i1) Tntangible Agscly 10546 131,24
(it} Capital work-in Progress = 7,030.15
{iv) Intangible Assets Undar Development 423,40 =
(b} Long ~Term Losns & Advances 13 148394 49,38
T2L58T.61 48,05534
2. Current Assets
{it] Inventories 14 180, 804.54 [ 6,278 51
(b Trade Recefvahles I3 2 85 (80.92 6775311
(&) Cash & Bank Balance Ity |2, Bl By 651353
() Shiort Term Lowns & Advances 17 T.627.63 B.251.57
{e] Other Curreit Assels 18 4013567 2944249
5,26, 31563 2,18,270.21
TOTAL 598.903.24 2,66,334.56

Significant accennting palicles & Moles to Financial Staiement: 1-30
The notes referred 10 above form an integral pant of these financiul satements

As per our attached report of even date

Far P K. Laklinnl & Co.
Clnrtered Accountants
FHMNao, H14682N

Sandecp Gulali

Partner

Mfemhership Meo.-5S09230

Place: Curgaom

Deate: 18082025
LDIN-25509230BEMIUKEA3T3

For and on belall of the Board of Directors of
Accord Tramsformer & Swilchpear Limiced

For Accort Transformar & Switchgear Limiled
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Director
Privdecp Komar Vermn Shalini Singh
Divector {Whale-Time Directar)
DN 051 13022 [N 07036391
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’\“H ey Wevms gl - dﬂﬁ’
Bunjan Kumar Samal Tulsi Sharma
[CFO) {Company Secredary)

Place: Gurgach
Dt |B/0RA2023
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ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED

(Formerly Known a5 " Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited)
CIN: U3S00HR2014PLCOS2544
STATEMENT OF FROFIT & LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
(Al amoonts ave in thousands of Indis Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Motes st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Revenue from operations 10 7.90,225.34 4.85369.14
(riher Income 20 1,693.69 6106
Total Revenue (T) L 7,91,919.02 4.85730.21
Expenses '
Cost of raw materials consumed 21 6,83,642.31 4,08,4%4.85
Direct expenses 22 23660002 17,591.65
Changes in inventories of Work in progress and Finished
Goods e ] (79,777.46) {15,052.35)]
Emploves Behefit Expenses 24 35,185.78 30,724.52
Fingnce Costs 25 673764 4,B58.87
Depreciation and amortization expenses 26 4,049,535 1,628.54
Other Expenses 27 35,676.91 15,415.95
Total Expenses (IT) T10,174.75 4,63,693.83
Priot Period Expenses 1,939.30 -
Profit hefore Tax 79.804.97 2203638
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 21,702.40 5,706.69
Taxes for carlier year (82.94) -
Deferred Tax Expenses (Credit) (1,251.35) 157.47
Total Tax Expenses 20.368.12 586417
Profit { (Loss) for the year 50.436.806 16,172.22
Earnings Per Equity Shave (Face value of shares Rs,
10
Basic 217.84 64.60
Diluted 21704 449

Significant accounting policies & Notes to Financial Statement: 1-30
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these fnancial stalcm:mts
As per our allached report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aegcord Transfarmer & Switchgear Limited

or Accord Transformer & Bwilchgear Limiled

Samdeep Gulati - Pradecp Kumar Verma  Shalini Singh
Parlner Director {Whole-Time Director)
Membership No.-509230 DIM; 05113022 DIN : (7036391
Flace: Gureaon -
Date: 18082025 ' ’ d
UDIN-25509230BMIUKE4373 E’,CH;:M] K ELci:x-m.{;' )‘",/M/
Ranjan Kumar Samal  Tulsi Sharma
{CFO) {Company Secretary)
Place: Gurgaon
Drate: | 8082025




ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHCEAR LIMITED

(Formerdy Known a5 " Accord Transformer & Switchgenr Private Limited)
CIN: U SI0HR204PLC052544
CABH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(AR ammueis sre i thowsnods of Tndin Bepees, unless olheinwlse stated)

Fartieulars ATai Mnreh; 2035 JTat Wlarch, 3054
Cash Moy from pperatlig Activities
el Profit before tax as per Frofit And Log A 00497 27,0046.38
Adljastiments for:
et 4 040,55 1628314
Lcua Prodit) ot Safe ¢ Dhiscanding of Property, Pl ind Bquipniet (net) 90756 -
L insenbised Foreym Broohangs { GainyLoss 8577
i Frapmeinl vosty 673764 4 BRERT

Tilerest Ingorme (T304} (281 47y
Operating Profit befove working capital changes ' 90,846,45 826212
EX TS (]
Changes s liveatares (74, 526.03), (51,372.04)
Changes in Trade Receivalile {247,227 82y [301,357.32)
Chonges in Loan & Advanoes (17,812.58) {8,712.26)
Change in Pravigions 311490 22582
|Clsarspe i Trade Payable 73,986 35 13,B89.45
[Changes in Ciber Cussent Labiiites TLTE86 47100
Cash Genernted Trom Qperstions (TO00L9%) {40,200, 79)
[iveed ‘Toces paki {I7,322.78) (5, A9
Net Cash from Opesiting Aclivifies (BT,33LTH) {51,5967.48)
Cash fow from Investing Activities

I Prerclmse of Progerty, Plant and Equipment {3L254.81) {Z2.997.07)
Sale of Propecty, Plast and Equipmest 3,200.00 -
lupzrest Insome 73804 .47
Net Cnsh sed In Investing Aetivities (2T, 318TT) [21,635.59)

-, " Cash Do from finaneing activities
Pracesds From fssue of Slare Capital (et of shiard issue axpenses) * AR 43 -
Net Proceeds from Long Tenn Bormaings i d e {20, 265,67
Net Pracesds from Sluwd Teon Borrowings ; 21454 13 B 64658
Finames Charges Pald (6,737.64) (4,588,87)
Med Cash nsed Trom Gngneing sceivities 1,14,455.05 [ERTERT]
Mt fnerease in cishoaid Cash oquivalenis{ A+0+C) {17545} {11.115.03)
Cash and Baonk balance at the begimving of e wEr 54128 11,556,318
Cash and Bank balance at the endl of the vear 345.83 541,28

The iodes relened o above form an imsegral part of thess finaneial siateimants
As per our aftached report of even dite

Ag per o report ntached

For podd on beladf of the Board of Ddeectors of
Accord Transforner & Switchpear Lhnited

For Abgprd Transformer & Switchgear Limiled

/ f:l’l"—u"‘" w Sk Hu'll""

For P, K. Lakhan! & Co.
ICharlered Accountants !
FRMu. 146820

Direclor
Sandeep Golati : Pradbeep Kamar Vernsa  Shabind Slagh
Patiner Drinscton Drirector
b Memberslip Ma,-500230 M- 051 13027 DM ; D73a0]
B Pinoe: Gurpgon .
I Date; 18/08/2025 & ) % P
DIN-2S5082 30BMILIKEA373 R lewns Sl /
Ranjan Kumar Samal — Tolsi Skarma
(CFD) (Company Secretary )

Place:. Gurgann
Diake: | BOR2E2S
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ACCORD TRAMSPORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
(Formerly Keown as " Acconl Transformer & Switchigear Frivile Limited)
CIMN: UMS00HRINIAPLOOSES 44
Noted forming gt of Finaneinl Statements for the vear ended Jist Mareh, 2005

(AN i1 mre o ih, I of Indinn Rapees, anless oilierwise siated)
Mote-3 : Shnve Capital
Asat A at
Particulars J16t Mareh, 2025 3t March, 2024
Number] Ammung|  Muimber, Amoint
Authorized Share Copltal:
207,350,000 {Previons Pesiod : 2,50,000) Equity Share
of Rs. 10 each 200,75 (1) 307,500 ZEAD, D0 L5040
Issued, Subseribed and Paid wp Share Capital:
2,94, 334 (Previons Pesiod : 2,50,000) Equity Share of
[, 10 each 204338 LM 2,500 2,500
(a} Reconeibation of the sluces oulsiending ai (he beginning and ai the and of the reporting periol
As at Axal
Hst Murch, 2025 A5t March, 2024
Equity Slares Musber| At Number Atnaini
Al'the beginning of the perad 230,000 2,500,800 250,000 1.300.00
fsged during the period 447338 44330 : -
Dutstunding at the end of the periml 204330 4339 250,000 1 500,00

(1) Terma! vights nitachel (o equity shaves

1} TermaRiglets nrmched to Equiry Shases: Tha company bis iy ane eloss of Equity Shanss having & par vilee of 8 100 per ghase. Bach hoider of
Eiquity sliare s entitled to ong vole per share. Inthe event of Hauidation of the Company, the kolders of equity share will be eitifled 1 reedve
resivainisg Assets of the Compuny, afler distribution of all preterential amownts The distribution will be in proportion to the numbes of equity shares
hield by the Slears holders )

2) The equity shares ase nol repayeble except in the case of a buy back, reduction of eapital or winding up in termms of the provisions of the Companics
Mk, 2013,

¥) Every miember of the compary halding equity sharnes las a gl b abiend the Genernl Meeting of the Company and has a cight to speak and on a
showe of s, hes oog vobe i be is present in persgn and on & poll slall have the right (9 vene in proportion o his share of the paid-up capital of the
cotipany.

(e} Shire held by the holling company amd detalls of shares hebl by sharebolders olding more than 3% of the aggregate share in the
Company

Asal As al
st Mavch, 2025 st Mareh, 2024
Mame of the sharcholder Mumber| ¥ Holding Mamalier o Huhbing
Pardeep Kumar Verma [FERULY AT 125,000 S0.00%
| Shuding Singh 125,00 A2.47% 125,000 50,00,
Total 250,000) B9 250,000 [[CETES

A e repords e company, inclwfing its Register of Sharcholders! Medsbers and oitier declantions reeeived from sharcholders garding
beneficial interesd, ihe above sharcholding represents both legal and benefieisl awrerships of shares

{d) Promatars's sheres holiling and % changes during the year

Ay at As at
31t Murch, 2025 313t March, 2024
MNumber of Number of
Mawie of the Shivehaller shares held % of Changes shares hekl % of Changes
Pardeep Kumar Verma 125,000/ .53 125,000 0.00%
Shnlini Singh 125,004 T 453% 125 {lnk 0,01
Talal 250,004 15.007% 250,000 LA,
‘The Company las oidy one clags of share refered o as cquity thares having par vilus of Rs 10
MNote - 4: Reserves and surplhies
Asat Ax mt
Particulars Al March, 2023 Flat Maych, 2024
tn) SHecuritics premium
Cpetiing Balaice = "
Add: Received o issee of shares G954 1,06 -
Less: Share [ssue Expensys 5 500,00 -
Closing Balance (A 04,4106 P
() Surplus in Stnlement of Peofit wnd Loss
Opening Batace 58,0800 42,816:83
Add: Met Profil/ {Less) Gor the curregt vear 59473686 I6,172.21
Closing Bakanee (1} 11842550 5890004
Z .Eu.'lii RRIFGA ) 3,12,466.95 5808004

AT o\

For Accord Transformer & Switchgagr Limited
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ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
(Formerly Known as "' Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited)
CIN: U31500HR2014PLC052544
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note:-29
The calculation of basic & diluied earnings per share is based on the earnings and number
Particulars As al As al
Jist Mavch, 2025 31st March, 2024
{a) Net Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders () 59.436.86 16,172.22
(b) Weighted Average number of shares
outstanding (Pre Bonus Issue In nos) 2,72,718.15 2,50,000.00
(g} Weighted Average number of shares
outstanding (Post Bonus Issue In nos) 27271615 2,50,000.00
(d) Nominal Value of each share (%) 10,00 10,00
(e) Basic & Diluted Earings Per Share Pre - honus
(%) (a/b} 21754 G460
(f) Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share Post -
bonus (T) (a'c) 217.94 64.69
MNote:- 30
Significant Accounting Ratios
’R_atlﬂiﬁs As at As at
315t March, 2025 31zt March, 2024
(&) Current Ratio 141 |09
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 0.55 1.49
{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio .75 0.29
{d) Return on Equity Ratio 42.93% 30.28%
(e} Inventory turnover ratio 351 6.02
([} Trade Receivables turnover ratio 448 9.34
Trade payables turnover ratio 6.43 6.78
(h) MNet capital turnover ratio 8921 26,03
{i) Net profit ratio 7.51% 3.33%
(i) Return on Capital emploved 0.35 0.31

Fakﬁmurd Transformer & Swilchgear Limited
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CIN: UIIS00HR2014PLCOS2544
Notes forming part of Financial Statemants for the vear ended 31st March, 2025
(All amounts are in thousands of Indian Bupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 5: Lang Term Borrowings

Asat Asat
Particulars 3lat Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Secured & Considered Good
Term loans from Banks
From HDFC Bank Limited R14.77 2.7917.97
Term loans from Others
Secured & Considered Good
Term Loan from Mercedes - Beng Financial Services 4,117.31 -
Total 7,932.00 L717.97
Note- 6: Defereed Tax Liabilities (Net)
; Asal Asat
FParticulars Alst Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Fixed nssets : Tmpact of tax on difference on valve af fixed assels
[betweeh book balance and WDV as per Income Tix Act (1,576, 74| {1,419.26)
Gross deferved tax assels {1,576.74)| {1,419.26)
Deferred tax assets
Impact of Tax on expenditure charged to the stalement of profit
and loss in the cursent vear but allowable in future for tax purpese
on payinent basis 1,251.35 (157.47)
Gross deferred tax assets [ (liahilities) 1,251.35 {157.47)
Met deferred tax Assets | (Liabilities) (325.39) (1,576.74)
Note - 7: Long Term Provisions
As at Az at
Particulars Mst Mar, 2025 | 315t March, 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity Payable 2.064.45 -
Leave Encashment Payable 795.86 -
Toral 2.860.31 -
Note - 8: Short Term Borrowings
Asat Asal
Particulars Jist Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Unsecured Loan
From diveclors repayable on demands 12,513.48 22,833.23
Secured Loan
Loan repayable on demunis fromBank
Inventory Funding & Cash Credit Facility fivan HTIFC Bank Lid 94.748.35 6, 678.53
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts
Tarm founs from Banks
From HDFC Bank Limited GB5.23 1,134.82
Term loans from Others
Tetm Loan from Mercedes - Benz Financial Services 2,193.64 -
F .'-';:i-k LANT fh\-
G Total 1,10,140.71 B8,646.58

For Accord Translormer & Swilch
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CIN: UM S00HR2014PLOCD52544
Motes forming part of Financial Stntements for the year ended 315t Marich, 2025
{All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupess, unless otherwise stated)

Mote - 10: Other Current Linbilities

Agat As at
Particulars 3ist Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Advance from Customers 24.841.02 15,743.56
Statutory Dues Payable 9.943.76 933,54
Empl:;ya: Benefit Expenses Payable 3.659.45 -
Lease Rent Equalisation Reserve 856,18 -
Bank Overdraft 56,937,908 5.316.53
Interest on delayed payment to MSME creditors payable 104,13 TR42
Expenses Pavable 1,177:50 3,592.29
Audit Fees Payable 54.00 40,50
Director Remuneration Payable 3.171.99 3,319.23
Tolal 1,00,846.91 26,044.18
Note - 11: Short Term Provisions
Asal Ag at
Particulars 3ist Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Leave Encashment Payable 112.00 -
Gratuity Payable 142.39 -
Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax, TDS and TCS) 9,993 3% 5,706.69
Total 10,247.77 5,706.69
Note - 13: Long Term Loans & Advances
' Asat As at
Particulars Ast Mar, 2025 | 31st Mareh, 2024
Unsecured, Considerad Good
Prepaid Expenses 1,483.94 49.38
Total 1,4583.94 49.38
Mote - 14: Inventories
Asal As al
FParticulars Ast Mar, 2025 | 31si March, 2024
Raw Materials and components 62,936.44 68, 187.88
Work-in-progress 1,08.517.45 26,944.03
Finished Goods .350.64 11,146,060
Total 1,80,804.54 1,06,278.51
Maote-16 Cash & Banlk Balance
Az al Anal
Particulars 3=t Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash in hand 207,27 398.97
Balance with Banks |
- In eurren| aecounts 48.56 142.31
Other Bank Balance
= FI with bank{having original maturity of more than 3 months
and remaining maturity of less than 12 months including given as 12,321.02 507225
Tuotal 12,666.86 6.513.53
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CIN: UNS00HRI014PLCO52544

Motes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025
{All smounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Muote - 17: Short Term Loan and Advances

Agat As at
Particulars 3st Mar, 2025 | st March, 2024
Balanee with Revenue authorities 222875 3,671.49
Vendor advances 311718 939,60
Loan & Advances 1,542.9%6 1,640.48
Prepaid cxpenses for IPO 622,50 -
Retention Money 116.23 -
Total 7,627.63 §,251.57
Note - 18: Other Current Assets
As at Asat
Particulars Alat Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Unsecured, Consldered Good
Retention Money 40,135.67 20,482 .49
T'otal 40,135.67 29,482.49
MNote - 19: Revenue From Operations
Agat Asat
Particulars 3st Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
A} Sale of Gonds 1.77.896.91 4,384,093 30
H) Sale of Services 12,328.42 1,275.76
Total 7,90,225 34 485,369, 14
Mote-20: Other Income
Asat Azat
Particulars 3ist Mar, 2025 | 318t Mareh, 2024
Interest On Fixed Deposit 704,55 291.47
Imterest on security Deposit (Electricity) 2849 -
Discount received 6.00 -
Sundry Balances Written Back D54.65 G958
Tuotal 1,693,069 361.06
Mote-21: Cost of Material Consumed
As at As at
Particulars st Mar, 2025 | 315t March, 2024
Opening Stock 68,187.88 31,868.19
Add: Purchases 6,78,300.87 4,44 816,54
T.46,578.75 4.76,684.73
Less: Closing Stock (62,936.4:4) (68,187 88)
Tatal 6,83,642.31 4,08,496.85
Mote-22: Direct expenses
; Ag at As nt
Particulars 3st Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Power and Fuet 3,145,117 1,424.64
Jobwork Expense [1L,117.01 7,044.32
Freight and Cartages 575,59 Bad4.17
Generalor Running & Maintenance 822,24 478,53
Total 23,660.02 17,591.65

pakar Limited
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CING UMSHHRZ014PLCOS2S44
Motes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31zt March, 2025
(Al amounts sre in theusands of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Note-23: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods Work in Progress

As at As ot
Farticulars Jst Mar, 2025 | 3st March, 2024
Finished Goods
Opening Stock 11,146.60 3,603.43
Less ; Closing Stock B330.64 11,146.60
Worl-In-Progress
Opening Stock 20,944.03 19,434 83
Less : Closing Stock 1,08,517.45 26,944.03
Chonges in inventory {79,777.46) (15,052.35)
Mote - 24: Employee Benefit Expenses
Az at Asat
Particulars 315t Mar, 2025 | st March, 2024
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 269,313.24 26,057.84
Giratuity Expenses 471,54 -
Leave Encashment 092,78 -
Directiors' Remuneration 3,600.00 3600000
Contribution to PF and ESIC 1,123,146 641,00
Staff welfare Expenses 985.07 425.68
Total 36,185.78 30,724.52
Mote - 25: Finance Costs
As at Az at
Particulars 31st Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Bank Charges & other App charges 1,517.58 1,545 06
Interest Expenses on: - -
(1} Borrowings - -
Interest on Bills Discounting 17197 -
Interest on delayed payment to MSME creditors 52.75 842
Interest on defayed payment of Income Tax, TDS and TCS 77104 -
Interest On Borrowings 4.224.31 2,865.35
2 ! Total 6,737.64 4,888.87
Note - 26: Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
i As at Asat
Particulars st Mar, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 4 04955 1,628.34
Tatal 4,049.55 1,628.34

e J r?ﬂ\ F
FAN Y,
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CIN: T31S00TIR20 14PLC0O52544
Nates forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31si March, 2025

{All amounts are in thousands of Indisn Rupees, unless ollerwise stated)
MNote - 27: Other Expenses

Asat Asat

Particulars st Mar, 2025 | 30st March, 2024
Business Promotion Expenses 4,218.07 Ta6.11
Brokerage and Commission Fxpense 2532010 2,357.36
Conveyance Expenses 197.87 a0l
Laoss of translation of foreign currency balances 8577
Rates & Taxes 843.51 28.97
Insurance Charges 30615 38208
Lepal & Professional Charges 2411.79 1,683 .49
Miscellaneous Expenses 154.06 1,536.72
Office Expenses 761.03 679,27
Postage and Courier Expenses 170.50 103.54
Rent Expenses 7.936.53 -
Repair & Maintenance Expanses 1,843.57 1,.905.97
ROC Fues 162063
Detention & Lale Delivery Charges B 198,50 1LB50. 16
Segurity Expenses 1,315 B00.68
Telephone & Internet Expenses 179.76 166,94
Tour & Travelling Expenses 1,939.61 1,327.89
Testing Charges 296,81 1,750.07
Loss on Sale of Fived Assets Q07,56 -
Payment to Auditors

For Statutory Audit 43,00 30.00

For Tax Audit F 15.00 13.00

Total 35,676.91 1541595

For Accord Transformer & Switcligear Limited

Sb\q_hlh i ‘:—:\«qﬂ»

Direclor




feue . La

R s Lo

ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
CIN: U31500HR2014PLCOS2544
Motes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ended 3ist March, 2025
{All ampunts are in thousands of indizn Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Nuoite-9: Trade Payables

Asat As at
Particulars : 31 March 31 March
Amounts Amounts
Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises ; and 6372774 25259.59
Total Outstanding dues of creditiors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8741197 31,893.79
1,51,139.73 77,153.37
Trade Payables agening schedule as at 31 March, 2025
Outstanding for following perfods from the due date of
Particulars paymens Total
Less than 1 i More than 3 g
-2 years 1-3 years
year Years
{i) MSME 63,727.76 - - 63.727.76
{if) Others 87.411.97 8741097
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others 3 -
1,51,139.73 - - - 1,51,139.73
Trade Payables agening schedule as a1 31 March, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of
payment
.| Particul
e Less than 1 Morethan3 | o
1-2 years 2-3 years
year YEars
(1) MSME 25,259.59 25250.50
(i) Others 51,823.49 T0.30 51,893.79
(iii) Dispuled dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - = i - -
77,083.07 T0.30 i i 77,153,327
PUES OF SMALL ENTERPRISES AND MICRO ENTERPRISES
| (T In Thousand)
Paifirtiog I-Mar-25 d1-Mar-24
T i
{#) Duses remaining uripaid to any supplicr at the end of each accounting year
-Pringepal 63,727.76 25,259.59
Interest on the above 104,13 842

(1) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Dovelopment Act, 2006, along with the smount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

() the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyonrd the sppointed day during the vear) bul without mdiding the mierest specitied
under the Micro, Smiall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2005;

(d) the amount of further interest remaining due and payuble even in the succeeding vears, until sl
date wien the interest dues above e id to the small enterprise, for thi purposs of
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Mote-15 : Trade receivables

ACCORD TRANSFORMER & SWITCHGEAR LIMITED
{Formerdy Known s " Accord Transformer & Switchgear Private Limited)
CTN: U3 SMHRZ0MPLC0S2S44
Mates forming poort of Finnnein] Statements for e yenr embed 31st Mavch, 2023
(AR amoumts sre in thousands of Dndian Rupees, uiless olherwise stiied )

As oot A ol
FPariiclars - 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
‘Trude receivables Amounts Amounis
Trivcde Receivabls Maore (hon Six Months 2644 41 144339
+ [A) 264451 1,443.39
Trace Feceivabbs Less than Six Months
Unsecumed, eonsidens] good 28243611 A0 92
Unuecwred, considersd doubitfal # . =
LEL AT 6, 309.72
Less: Provision for Bod & Daubefial Debes 5 =
(B LBZA36.11 6, 300,72
A+ ) 115 (180 52 B7.753.11
Trade receivahiles apeing seliedole ns 0t 31 Mavch, 2025
(heistamling for Tllewing periods feom due date of paymend
Farticulnes - Tutal
. Leas than &, & mailis-1 Mlore than 3,
Unhilbed Mot Due sl s 1-2 years 2-3 years e
{i} Undisputad trade recesvables — corsidered pood - TASA2LT aro4z0 702,74 TEOR | 1061 - 2,45,080.92
(i) Uinal i tebe receivables - considered deabtful - - = = . i
(i) Diggnated trade receivahles — considered goad - - - - - -
(iw) Diispmbed ade receivables — considered doaldful 0 = u - > k-
] - L4541 37,0H4.20 TOL.74 T3 | LESLTM L.H50R0.92
Troie receivables agelng schedule as at 31 Mareh, 2024
Paviiculisy ' wLmﬁ;lf:.:w %ﬂl!r::;-":m Fuadete ofpuyment Miove fhnn 3 Tutnk
L ! -
killled Mot Doe e e 1-2 years 13 yenra S
(1) Unedesgnisted trada resgivalbiles - comsidersed good 6540305 Bl6aT - L0330 67,7531
(i} Unndlispaibed frucle wablea — covsidered dowbcful - s - = -
(i) Disputed feade receivabibes — considered good ¥ = o
[} Phispaited drnide reccivables - considered doubtful # L
- G5,493.05 R1&67 - 1,443.39 - 6T, 73311

For Accord Transformer 8 5
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Accord Transformer & Swilchgear Limited

(Formerly knowa as "Actord Transformer & Swilchgeiar Private Limited™)

CIN:U3TS00HR2014PLOCOS 2544

Mote- 38 Employee Benefits Pl (Disclosure Under AS-15)

A, DEFINER CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Farticulars Far the yenir ended Fi thi year ended
Mlaveh 31, 2025 Manreh 31, 2424
(T in Thouesand) (¥ In Thousand)

|Eimplayers’ Contrilution 10 Providem Fand and BSIC 11216 641,00

B DEFINED BENENIT QOBLIGATION
1) Gratulty |

The gratuity benefit payable 1o the employees of the Company 18 & per e provisions of the Paymens of Graminy Act, 1972, as amenied,
Uinder the gratuity plan, évery employes wha has compleled & least 5 yens of sendve gets grabiity on separation-or at the tine af
superanmnition catouluted for gquivadent to 15 days salary for each comipleed year of service enloubmed on lost-drwn basic salary, The

Company dess nat fave o funded plan for grtuily linbiity,

L
I ASSUMPTIONS:

For the year ended Far the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 Mwrch 31, 2024
| Diiscoumt Rate . T00% 7 109%
Salory Escalation B BO0% LA
Willsdraveal Rartes 100 100025
Pl tality Table Iilinn Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2002-14) Ll (Mortality [2012- 143 Ul
Retirement Aps sl years Gl yenrs
Il CHANGE IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT For the yenr ended For the year ended
ORLIGATION: March 31, 2028 Mareh 31, 2024
(% in Thewsand) {7 in Thonsand)
Present Yalue of Benefil Chligation as at the beginning of the vear 1,735.30 456,07
Adjusimen] or prior period
Current Service Cost 514.52 466,07
Elovest Crst 12321 5
[Benefil pid ) - -
Achnrial {gainsVlosses {16519} ZAZAL
Fresent vishse of benefit obligation us at the cod of the year 1,206,854 1, 73530
ML ACTUARIAL GAINS/LOSSES: For the year ended Far the year ended
Niarch 31,2025 Mavch 31, 2024
Actuartal {pains)nszes on oblipation for the vear (16619 247 41
Actonrial {ains)Tbsses on asset for the year . E
Actuzrial (pains)loses m' nized in income & expenses Statement {F66.19 2241
IV, EXPENSES RECOGNISED T e yenr coidd For the year envded
Mlarch 31, 2025 March 31, 20124
(% In Thousand} (%in Th 1}
Current service cost 514,52 Ak 0T
[nderest coat 125.21 TS5
Actuarial {painsyiosses {1as.19) 24241
Expende charaed o the Statement of Prafic and Loss 47154 772,23
V. BALANCE SHEET RECONCILIATION; For the year ended Far the year enled
Mareh 33, 2025 March 31, 2024
(% in Thomsand) (% in Thousand)
Cpening bet Wabilily 173530 9S8 07
\Adjustmsent for prior perod -
Expenss &5 ahove 471,54 TEI
Benafits Paid . -
et linbillty/ asset) vecngnized in fhe lu) sheet 1201684 173530
VI EXFERIENCE ADIUSTMENTS For the year ended Far the year enided
| March 31,2026 | Wiaren31, 2024
(T in Thowsand) 1% I Thousand}
On Pian Liahality [Casns )] omses 23550 700,31

WIL The estunntes of raty of sabary increase considered in fhe aouarial vahustion takes into aecouns inflation, Seniority, proowotion and ol

otfier relevant factors including supply aod dedgaedan

& employment masket.

direclor



2} Leave Encashment

L ASSUMIFTIONS: For the year emded | Foo tle year ended
MMnrch 31, 2025 _Mareh 31, 2024
Diseeunt Rate ,700% Tl
Siiliry Eaculatuon .00 800
Withermwal Rates 0% 1000%
Iortality Table Incdizus Assored Lives | [ndiun Assured Lives
Iprrality {20712- 14) L [ Mortality (200214 Ul
Retivemenl Age 4 years A0 ey
IT. CHANGE IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT For the year ended For the year ended
OHLIGATION: Mureh 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
(T in Thousands) (% i Tl !
Present Value of Renafit Ohligation as of the beginning of e yea 1,735.30 956,07
| Adjustment for Prior Period
Transter infdour) obligaton - -
Inferest eost 12331 035
Current Servige Cost 514.52 A646.07
{ Benefit pasd) = =
Actuaria] gamnsilosses (168 15) 242.41
Present valae of benefit obligation s ot the enid of the year 2,206, 54 1,735,340

L ACTUARIAL GAINS/ILOSSES:

For the vear ended

Fap Lhi year fadel

March 31, 2025 March 31, 3024 |

[ i Tl 1] (% in Thowsands)
Actusria] (guins Flosses o ebligation for the year [166.19) 24341
Actuariad (guims)losses o nsset for the year = ;
[Actunrial (gains)bosses recognized in Income & Expenses stai {16619y 24241

1V, EXPENSES RECOGNISED For the year ended | For tlie year ended
| Morch 3, 2028 | March 31, 2024
(%in L i) (¥ in Thousands)
Curroit service cost 1453 466.07
[nierest cost 1232 7075
Aciarial (gainalonees [166.19) 24241
Expense charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss 47184 T2
V. BALANCE SHEET RECONCILIATION: For the vear ended For thie year endel
Iiarch 31, 2025 March ]IrbﬂL
(¥ in Thousanils) (% In Thousands)
Opening nel linbilify 1,735.30 856,07
Adjustnaent fer Prior Period B
Expenss i alove 47154 77923
(Benehil puid) - Z
Ml linbility{assel) recognized in the balanee sheet 2,204,584 1,735.30
VI EXPERIENCE ADJUSTMENTS Faor the year ended oo the year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

Cn Plan Lanbility { Giins )V Losses

(¥ in Thousanis)

(£ In Thousimds)

WVIL The estimates of raie of satary tereage considered in the agtuirial valuation takes into account inflatian, senioily, gromotion nnd all

ather relevant ficgors including supply s demand in be enployment market.
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